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IBDO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL MADAR FINANCE
AND INVESTMENT COMPANY K.S.C. (PUBLIC) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATE OF KUWAIT

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C.
(Public) (“the Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries, (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“IESBA Code”) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the State of Kuwait, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the above IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
accordingly, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Below is a breakdown of how we
addressed each of these key audit matters.

Qur performed audit procedures included the following procedures, among other matters:

Valuation of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties represent significant
part of the total assets that are recorded at fair value as at
31 December 2020 determined by external real estate
independent valuers. Determination of fair value of
investment properties mainly depends on estimates and
assumptions such as market knowledge and average
market price of similar properties. Disclosures related to
assumptions and estimates and policy of investment
properties recognition and measurement are presented in
accounting policies section in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements. Due to size and
complexity of estimates and assumptions used in
performing audit on investment properties, and

importance of the disclosures related to such estimates
and assumptions used in valuation, we determined this
matter as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our performed audit procedures included
verifying assumptions and estimates made by
the Group’s management, and appropriateness
of relevant data supporting valuations of the
external valuers. Such procedures included, as
appropriate, comparing judgments made
concerning current and emerging practices, and
verifying the valuations. We further reviewed
the valuation reports issued by the licensed
external valuers. Morecover, we valuated
appropriateness of disclosures related to
assumptions sensitivity in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BDO Al Nisf & Partners is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO networl of
independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL MADAR FINANCE
AND INVESTMENT COMPANY K.S.C. (PUBLIC) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
STATE OF KUWAIT

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Trade receivables How our audit addressed the matter

The Group's trade receivables are considered to  Our performed audit procedures included examining
be a key audit matter for the Group. Due to the samples from trade receivables balances together with
nature of the significant judgments associated the following procedures:

with the calculation of expected credit losses, the e  Reviewing the compliance with the Group's credit

assessment of the expected credit losses is a key and collection policies and inquiring whether
element. Our main focus is to determine the there were changes from previous years.
amounts recoverable from trade receivable, as the o We have reviewed the ageing for trade
determination of the amounts recoverable of receivables.

certain trade receivables may involve making o We have reviewed the form of expected credit
significant  estimates  based on  several losses used by the management to determine the
assumptions. impairment.

o We have made test for the inputs used, whether
current or  historical, and reviewed the
assumptions used to calculate the expected credit
losses.

Other Information

“Other information” consists of the information included in the Group’s annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other
information. We expect that the annual report will be available after the date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above, when available, and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL MADAR FINANCE
AND INVESTMENT COMPANY K.S.C. (PUBLIC) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
STATE OF KUWAIT

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current period, and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL MADAR FINANCE
AND INVESTMENT COMPANY K.S.C. (PUBLIC) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
STATE OF KUWAIT

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company, the physical count was duly
carried out and the consolidated financial statements stated in the report of the Parent Company’s board of
directors, are in accordance with the Parent Company’s books. Also, we have obtained the information and
explanations that we deemed necessary for the purpose of our audit, the consolidated financial statements
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies’® Law No. 1 of 2016, and its Executive
Regulations, as amended and Law No. 7 of 2010 in respect of the Establishment of Capital Market Authority
and the Organization of the Securities Activity and its Executive Regulations, Law No. 32 of 1968, as
amended, concerning the Currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the Organization of Banking Business,
and its related Regulations and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, as amended. To the best of our knowledge, no violations of the Companies’ Law No. 1 0f 2016,
and its Executive Regulations and Law No. 7 of 2010 in respect of the Establishment of Capital Market
Authority and the Organization of the Securities Activity and its Executive Regulations, Law No. 32 of 1968,
as amended, concerning the Currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the Organization of Banking
Business, and its related Regulations, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and
Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 that
might have had a material effect on the Group’s business or its consolidated financial position.

v

Qais M. Al Nisf
License No. 38 "A"
BDO Al Nisf & Partners

Kuwait: 22 February 2021
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Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)

And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2020

ASSETS

Cash and bank balances

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Due from a related party

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Investment properties

Investment in an associate

Property, plant and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other credit balances
Due to a related party

Employees’ end of service indemnity

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Share premium

Treasury shares

Change of fair value reserve for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation reserve

Other reserve

Proposed dividends

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Notes

oo

12
13
14
15

16
11

17
18

20

28

2020 2019
KD KD
639,580 4,338,781

1,209,091 979,557
8,606,211 11,948,852
192 316
36,194 41,400

15,792,444 10,044,359

460,377 434,369

25911 28,111
26,770,000 27,815,745
2,399,356 2,409,933
343,162 341,776
391,856 367,219
3,134,374 3,118,928

21,386,865 21,386,865

134,383 127,140

4,990,296 4,990,296
(4,573,296) (4,573,296)
x (4,600)

(72,030) (61,086)
(122,147) (122,147)

. 1,035,118

46,303 50,633
21,790,374 22,828,923
1,845,252 1,867,894
23,635,626 24,696,817
26,770,000 27,815,745

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Waleed Abdulraheem Al—Asz;ur . psees

Chairman 7
/ -



Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
KD KD

Continued operations
Revenue
Net rental income 24 346,556 031,797
Net operating loss 25 (221,377} {139,835)
Investment services revenues 23 1,234 36,070
Loss from sale of investment properties 13 (50,118) (304,834)
Realized gains /(losses) on sale of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 271,608 {42,001}
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (110,754) (79,153)
Cash dividends 203,493 20,288
Write back of provision for expected credit losses 10 60,464 563,908
Realized gain from setilement of Wakala payables - t14,020
Change in fair value of investment properties 13 442,335 (204,408)
Group's share in business results of an associate 59,233 59,604
Other income 31,319 2,059,620
Total revenue 1,033,993 2,715,046
Expenses and other charges
General and administrative expenses 21 (888,813) (1,485,889)
Provision for expected credit losses 10 (72,750) (143,748)
Impairment of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (41,147
Finance costs - (141.416)
Total cxpenses and ofher charges (961,563) (1,812,200}
Profit for the year from continuing operations before National
Labour Support Tax (NLST), Zakat, contribution to Kuwait
Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) and
Directors’ remuneration 72,430 902,846
National Labour Support Tax - (13,188)
Zakat (278) (6,868)
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of
Sciences (646) (£3,456)
Board of directors’ remuneration 28 - {25,000
Profit for the year from continuing operations 71,506 844,334
Disconfinued operations
Profit for the year [rom discontinued operations - 592,359
Net profit for the year 71,500 1,436,693
Attributable to:
The Parent Company's Shareholders 7,352 1,386,287
Non-controlling interests 64,154 50,400
Net profit for the year 71,500 1,436,693

Basic and diluted carnings per share for the year from the
continuing and discontinued operations attributabie to the
sharcholders of the Parent Company (fils) 22 (.04 6.70

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year from the
continuing operations attributable to the sharcholders of the
Parent Company (fils) 22 0.04 3.83

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year from the
discontinued operations attributable to the Sharcholders of the
Parent Company (fils) 22 - 2.86

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
6



Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)
And its subsidiarices
State of Kuwait

Consolidated Statement of Compreliensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income items:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the consolidated
statement of income:

Foreign currency translation reserve

Items that will not reclassified subsequently to the
consolidated statement of income:

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive (loss)/ income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
The Parent Company’s Sharcholders
Non-controlling interests

2020 2019

KD KD
71,506 1,436,693
(10,944) 47,385
161 (5,562)
(10,783} 41,823
60,723 1,478,516
(3,431) 1,428,110
64,154 50,406
60,723 1,478,516

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)
and its subsidiarics
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net prolit for the year

Adjustmenis:

Beprecintion and amortization

Finance cosls

Change in lair value of financial assels at Fair value through profit or foss
Realized (profit) / loss on sale of finsncial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Loss from sale of imvestment propertics

Cash dividends

Change in faiv value of investment properties

Gains on disposal of investment in subsidiarics

Provision Jor expected credit losses

Write back of provision for expected credit losscs

Group’s share in business results of an associate

Realized gain trom setement of Wakala payables

Impairment ol financial assets at fair vatue through profit or Joss
lmployees™ ead of service indemnily

(Loss) /7 profit belore caleulating cllect of change in working capital items
Accounis receivable and other debit balances

Due from / to related party — net

Accourds payable and other credit balances

el cash generated from operations

limployecs end of service benefits paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Paid for purchase of investment properlics

Cash dividends received

Proceeds {rom disposal of subsidiarics - accounts receivable and other debit
batances

Procecds from sale of investment properties - accounts receivable atd other
debit balances

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at lair value through other comprehensive
income

Praceeds on safe of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Payment Tor purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment

Procecds on sale of investment propertics

Paid for purchuse ol investment in an associale

Dividends reccived from an associale

Net cash (used in) /gencrated from investing aclivities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Ned movement in [jara payables

Net movemend in Wakala reccivables

Cush dividends paid

Finance costs paid

Fitect of change in non-controtling interests

Net cash used in financing activitics

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and bank balances
Decrease i cash and bank balances from sale of subsidiarics
Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year
Cashoand bank balances at the end of the year

Noles

10
t0
14

14
14

28

8

2020 2019
KD KD
71,506 1,436,693
2,200 60,883
. 141,416
110,754 79,153
(271,608) 42,091
50,118 304.834
(203,493) {20,288)
(442.335) 204,408
. (240,799)
72,750 143,748
(60,464 (563,968)
(59,233 (59,604)
. (114,020
- 41,147
33,728 143,443
(696,077) 1,599,137
2,672,255 778,084
1,510 18,054
(14 488) (114,241)
1,963,200 2.281,034
(9,091) (308,037)
1.954 109 1,972.997
(11,798.378) (3,885,000)
203,493 -
7,000,000 240,000
64,630 11,599,716
5,367 -
15,364,952 10,502,554
(£5,433,632) (11,513,236)
- (5.286)
40,000 .
- (87,083)
22,172 13,277
(4,531,396) 6,864,942
- (2,325,673}
- (3.977.746)
(1,035,118) .
- (141,416)
(86,796) 12,192
(1,121.914) (6,432,643)
(3,699,201) 2,405,296
- (333,360)
4,338,781 2,266,845
639,580 4,338,781

The Group has the [ollowing nos-cash activitics during the year, whicl is not reflected in the consofidated statement of cask Mows.

Non-cash transactions

Aceounts receivable and other debit balances

2020 2019
KD KD
6,381,900 -

The accompanying notes on pages 10 (o 48 Form an inlegral part of these consotidated financial statements,

9




Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)
and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public) (“the Parent Company™) was
incorporated on 23 November 1998. The Parent Company is registered with the Central Bank of
Kuwait and Capital Markets Authority as an investment company. 1t is listed in Boursa Kuwait on
20 June 2005.

The Parent Company is principally engaged in the following activities in compliance with the
isfamic Sharia as follows:

* Promoting and marketing shares and bonds ot all types for the favor of the Company according
to Islamic Shari’a.

+ Investment in all types of movables whether for its own favor or for others by way of agency or
brokerage except for the Company’s trading in commodities for its favor.

e Lending, borrowing and financing international trading transactions as well as issue and
exchange of Istamic bonds of all kinds and forms for its clients.

» Portfolio management as per relevant laws and according to Islamic Shari’a,

* Purchase, lease, acquisition, rent, licensing of all kinds of investment equipment and subsequent
sale or disposal thereof,

e Carry out real estate investments for the Parent Company’s account or for third parties,

* Providing research and studies and other technical services related to investment and employing
funds for others.

e Establishing and managing investment funds as per relevant laws and regulations and after
approval of concerned parties.

The Parent Company may have interests or participate in any suitable way with entities that engage
in similar business activitics or that may help the Company achieve its objectives inside the State of
Kuwait or abroad. It may also incorporate, purchasc or affiliate such entities.

The Parent Company is domiciled in Kuwait and its registered office is P.O. Box 1376, Safat
13014, Kuwait,

The Parent Company is subsidiary to Al Thekair General Trading and Contracting Company
W.L.L, (“the Ultimate Parent Company™).

The consolidated financial statements of Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C.
(Public) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorized
for issue by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors on 22 February 2021, They are subject to the
approval of the Shareholders’ annual General assembly. The Parent Company’s sharcholders have
the power to amend these consolidated financial statements at the Shareholders’ annual General
Assembly.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income and investment properties that are measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinar ("KD™ which is also
the functional currency of the Parent Company.

0




Al Madar Finance and Investment Company IK.S.C. (Public)
and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.

a)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSs™) and the IFRS interpretations Commitiee applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“lASB™), and applicable requirements of the Companies Law.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in compliance with adopted IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also requires the Group’s management to exercise

Judgment in applying the Group's accounting policies. Significant accounting judgments and key

sources of estimation uncertainty made in preparing the consolidated financial statements and their
elfect arc disclosed in Nofe 6.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“1FRSS™)

New standards and amendments effective from 1 January 2020

New slandards impacting the Group that have been adopted in the annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Anrendmerts 1o IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “Information is material if
omifting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or
in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements.

A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users,

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected
to be any future impact to the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 3 were mandatorily effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020. The amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a
business. an integrated set of activitics and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create oulputs,

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, but may
impact the fiture periods should the Group cnter into any business combinations.

Awmendments (o IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IAS 39: Inferest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to IFRS 9 and 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by
interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to
uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or
the hedging instrument,

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it does
not have any interest rate hedge relationships.
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b)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS™) (CONTINUED)

New standards and amendments effective from { January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

Effcctive 1 June 2020, IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient for Jessees
accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
salisty the following criteria:

a) The change in lease payments resulfs in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

b) The reduction is lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021:

¢) 'There are no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisty these criteria may be accounted for in accordance with the practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not assess whether the rent concession meets the definition
of a fease modilication. Lessees apply other requirements in IFRS [6 in accounting for the
concession,

Accounting for the rent concessions as leasc modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the leasc liability to reflect the revised consideration using a revised discount rate, with
the effect of the change in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use asset.

By applying the practical expedient, the Group is not required to determine a revised discount rate
and the effect of the change in the fease liability is reflected in the profit or foss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

This amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on 29 March 2018

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts ot requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist
the IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies where
there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all partics to understand and interpret the
standards. This will affect those entitics which developed their accounting policies based on the
Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework includes some new concepts, updated
definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some imporiant concepts.

This amendment had no impact on the consolidated linancial statements of the Group.,

Standards issued but not effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the
date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements arc disclosed below. The Group
intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they
become effective,
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b)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (CONTINUED)

Standards issued but not effective (Continued)

IFRS 17 fnsuwrance Contracts

This standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and replaces
iFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. The new standard applies to all types of insurance contracts,
regardiess of the Lype of entilies that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation features. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model,
supplemented by:

» A specilic adoption for contracts with direct participation features (Variable fee approach).

+ A simplified approach {premium allocation approach) mainly for short duration contracts.

Early application is permitted provided that the Group also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or
before the date it first applies IFRS 17,

This standard is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments (o paragraphs 69 to 76 of 1AS | to specily the

requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

» What is meant by a right to defer settlement.

e That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period,

» That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right.

 That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itseif an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classilication.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and must be applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments
will have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

Amendments to H7RS 3. Reference to the Conceptual Franmework

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments o IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the
Coneeptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS
3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent
liabilitics that would be within the scope of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent asscts
that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and apply retrospectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*1FRSS”) (CONTINUED)

Standards issued but not effective (Continued)

Amendments (o IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use,
which prohibits entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in
profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
must be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on
or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

‘The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.
Amendmenis (0 IAS 37; Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to 1AS 37 to specify which costs an entity necds to
include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making.

The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract
to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting perieds beginning on or after [ January 2022.
The Group will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled afl its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
The following is the summary of the amendments from the 2018-2020 annual improvements cycle:

IFRS | First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as a firsi-
time adopier

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS | to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the Parent Company, based on the
parent’s date of transition to IFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or joint venture
that elects to apply paragraph D16 (a) of IFRS 1.

These amendments will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022,
with early application permilted.

RS 9 Finaneial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition_of financial
liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by cither the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applics the amendment te financial labilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
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b)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*IFRSS”} (CONTINUED)

Standards issucd but not effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for_derecognition_of financial
ligbilities (continued)

These amendments will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022,
with early application permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in IHustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company
and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Parent Company and its subsidiary.
Control is achieved when the Parent Company (a) has power over the investee (b) is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investec and (c) has the ability to use its
power to affects its refurns,

De-facto control exists in situations where the Parent Company has the practical ability to direct the

relevant activitics of the investee without holding the majority of the voting rights. In determining

whether de-facto control exists the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,

including:

- The size of the Parent Company’s voling rights relative to both the size and dispersion of other
parties who hold voting rights

- Substantive potential voting rights held by the Parent Company and by other parties

- Other contractual arrangements.

- Historic patterns in voting attendance.

The Parent Company revaluates whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three components of controls listed above.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Parent Company losses control over the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of’ income or other comprehensive income from the date the Parent Company gains
control until the date when Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary
is attributed fo the Parent Company’s owners and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made (o the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into fline with the Group’s accounting policies.

15



Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.5.C. (Public)
and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

5.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5.1. Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Changes in the Parent Company's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Parent
Company losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Parent Company's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and atiributed to the owners of the Parent Company.

When the Parent Company loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of income and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Parent Company had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit and loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/ permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under 1AS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as follows:

Vaoting rights and

Country of equity interest
Company’s name [ncorporation Activity 2020 2019
* Dar Al-Thuraya Real Bstate Co. K.S.C. State of
(Public) Kuwait Real estate 38.91% 88.35%
Al Madar Real Estate Development State of
Company K.5.C. (Closed) Kuwait Real estate 98.5% 98.5%
Al Thuraya for Warchousing and State of
Refrigeration Company K.5.C. (Closed) Kuwait Warchousing 96% 96%

* The consolidated financial statements of Dar Al-Thuraya Real Estate Co. K.S.C. {Public) and its
subsidiaries include the following:

Vofing rights and

Country of equity interest

Company’s name Incorporation Activity 2020 2019
General
Trading and
AL Thuraya Star Company W.L.L. State of Kuwait  Contracting 99% 99%
Kuwait Building Real Estate Company
K.8.C. (Closed) State of Kuwait Real estate 96% 96%
Golden Madar Real Estate Company W.L.L. State of Kuwait Real estate 98% 98%
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A,
5.2.

5.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses combination are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisilion-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
consolidated statement of income as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date, except deferred tax assets or liabilities, liabilities or equity
instruments related to share based payment arrangements and assets that are classified as held for sale
in which cases they are accounted for in accordance with the related IFRS.

Goodwill is measured as the excess ot the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previousty held equity
interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquired (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of income as a bargain purchase gain,

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured cither at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at air value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
IFRS.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in consolidated statement of income. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
such treatment would be appropriate it that interest were disposed of.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its [inancial instruments as financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial
assets and liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party of the contractual provisions of
such instruments.

The financial assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
include cash and bank balances, financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss, accounts
receivable and other debit balances, due from a refated party, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, accounts payable and other credit balances, and due to a related party.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets:

Initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

To determine the classification and measurement category of financial assets, IFRS requires
assessment of all financial assets, except for equity instruments and derivatives, based on the Group’s
business model for managing the Group’s assets and the coniractual cash flows characteristics of
these instruments,

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages its financial
assets to achieve its business objectives and in order (o generate contractual cash flows. Whether the
Group’s sole objective is to collect the contractual cash [lows from the assets or to collect both the
confractual cash flows and cash [lows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable
(e.g. financial assels are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of
sell business model and measured at fair value through profit or loss, The Group’s business model is
not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios.

Purchases and sales of the financial assels are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. The {inancial assets are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs for afl {inancial assets that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss,

Classification of financial assets

Financial assels are classified in the consolidated financial statements into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

*  Financial assets at amortised cost,

¢  Financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss.

*  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets carried af amortised cost

A financial assct is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met and is not

designated at fair value through profit or loss:

e It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets lo coliect contractual cash
flows; and

* Its contractual termis give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding,.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective yield method adjusted for impairment losses if any. Profits and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognised, adjusted or impaired.

The financial assets at amortized cost include cash and bank balances, accounts receivable and other
debit balances, and due front a related party.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective yield rate method

The effective return rate is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating return over the relevant period. The effective yield is the rate that exaclly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Cash and bank balances
The item includes cash on hand and bank accounts with banks that are exposed to insignificant risks
in terms of changes in the value.

Trade receivables and other debit balances

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale of goods or leasing units or rendering
services in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective yield rate method, less provision for
impairment,

Receivables which are not designated under any of the above are classified as “other assets™.

Finaneial assets af fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies the financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or foss when
purchased or issued in order to achieve short-term profits through trading activities or when they form
a part of a financial instruments portfolio that are managed together, there is an evidence for emerging
a new pattern to achieve short-term profits. Assets held for trading are recognized and measured at
fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Profits or losses on the change in fair value, profits or losses on sale and dividends are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income under the contract conditions or when the right to receive the
profits amount is established.

Financial assels af fair value through other comprehensive inconie

Upon initiaf recognition, the Group may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of Equity under 1AS
(32) Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by- instrument basis.

Profits and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Dividends are recognized in consolidated statement of income when the right of the
payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to an impairment assessment. Upon disposal, cumulative gains ot losses arc reclassified
from cumulative changes in fair value to retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity.

Financial assets at fair value through othcr comprehensive income represent equity instrument
investments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assefs (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied the standard’s simplified approach and has
calculated the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) based on lifetime ECLs, Accordingly, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk and assesses impairment on a collective basis. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Exposures were
segmented based on common credit charactetistics such as credit risk grade, geographic region and
industry, delinquency status and age of relationship where applicable.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the asset’s original effective yield rate.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially alf the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and in case of loans, borrowings and
creditors  directly attributable transactions costs are discounted. All financial labilities are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost using the effective
profit rate method.

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, within the scope of IAS 9, as financial
liabilities at fair value through statement of income, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an clfective hedge, as appropriate.

The Group determines the classitication of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are initially rccognised at fair value, and in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and other credit balances and due to a
related party.

Subsequent measurement

Aecounts pavable and other credit balances

Accounts payable and other credit balances are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method. Accounts
payable are classificd as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operaling cycle of the business if fonger). H not, they are presented as non - current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilitics (continued

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. Exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of incoine.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investmend property. Investiment properties also include
propetty that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and
borrowing costs, where required.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are remeasured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and other assumptions market participants would make when pricing the property under current
market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associaied with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Changes in fair values are included in the consolidated statement of income. Investment properties are
derecognised when they have been disposed.

Investment properties arc derccognised when cither they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no fulure economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Gains or losses arising on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Properties under development

Incurred costs are charged to construction or production of capital assets under properties under
development {ill construction or production of these assets is complete, at which time they are
reclassilied as plant and equipment, investment property, or trading properties. Costs include all
direct costs and other costs atiributable on reasonable basis.

Investments in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which are
neither subsidiaries nor interests in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investees but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investment in associates is accounted for under the equity method. This method requires
to recoghize the Group’s share, at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, at cost
plus the Group’s share in afl subsequent changes of net assets of the associates, less any impairment.
The consalidated statement of income reflects the Group’s share in the results of operations of the
associates,
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5.
5.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is
recognised as gooadwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of that invesiment. Any excess of the Group's share of the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilitics and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.

All subsequent changes to the Group's share of interest in the equity of the associates are recognised
in the carrying amount of the investment. Distributions received from associates reduce the carrying
amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may afso be necessary for changes in
the Group’s share in the associates arising from changes resulting from statement of other
comprehensive income of the associate or other items recognised directly in the associates' or Group’s
equities, as applicable,

When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals or exceeds its interest in the associates,

including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has

incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of Lhe associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s share in
the associales. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of
impairment in the asset transferred. An assessment for impairment of investments in associates is
performed when there is an indication that the assel has been impaired, or that impairment osses
recognized in prior years no longer exist,

The associates’ financial statements are prepared either on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements date or on an earlier date not longer than three months of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements date. Amounts reported in the financial statements of associates have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
Where practicable, adjustments are made for the effect of significant transactions or other events that
occurred between the reporting dale of the associates and the Group’s consolidated financial
statements date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost fess accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impatrment losses. Cost includes the purchase price and directly associated costs of bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use. Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improvements
of minor importance are expensed as incurred, In situations, where it is clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected 1o be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expendilure is capitalised.

Depreciation is calculated based on estimated useful life of the applicable assets on a straight line
basis. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately o its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
Profits or losses on disposals are determined by the difference between net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Works in progress for purposes of production or administrative usage are recorded at cost less any
recognized impairment loss. Cost includes prolessional fees and borrowing costs that are capitalized at
assets {ulfiling conditions of capitalization of borrowing costs as per the accounting policy of the
Group. Such properties are classified within appropriate categories of items of propertics, plant and
equipment when completed as deemed as ready for use. Depreciation of such assets starts when they
are ready for use in the intended purpose, in the same way as other items of property, plant and
equipment.

22




Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)
and its subsidiaries
State of Kuawait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

S.
5.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each consolidated financial position date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-
financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment foss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, the Company’s assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and valfue in use. In assessing value
in use, the tuture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-penerating unit) is estimated 1o be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impaitment
loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
toss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and setile
the liabilities simultancously.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own shares that have been issued, subsequently
reacquired by the Parent Company and not yet reissued, sold or cancelled. No gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income an the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
treasury shares. Consideration paid or received is directly recognised in equity. When the treasury
shares are sold, gains are credited to a separate account in shareholders’ equity (treasury shares
reserve) which is not distributable. Any realized losses are charged to the same account to the extent
of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the
reserves.

Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously
recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and treasury shares reserve. No cash
dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares
proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury
shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a
lepal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of cconomic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation, If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employees’ end of service indemnity

The Group provides end of service benefits 10 its employees. The entitlement 1o these benefits is
based upon the employees” final salary and length of service subject to the completion of a minimum
service period, The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This
fiability which is unfunded represents the amount payable to each employee as a result of
termination by the Group on the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Contingent assets and labilities
Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilitics are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a
contract with a customer and cxcludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenuc when it fransfers control of a product or service to a customer. The Group
tollows a 5-step process:

» Identifying the contract with a customer.

[dentifying the performance obligations.

Determine the transaction price,

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations.

Recognising revenue when / as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

* & & 8

IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying cach step of the model to contracts with their customers. The
Standard also specifics method of accounting for the additional costs 1o oblain the contract and the
costs that are directly attributable to the contract execution. The standard also requires
comprehensive disclosures.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group
satisties performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

The Group shall transfer control of goods or services over a period of time (and not at a specific

time) upon fulfillment of any of the following criteria:

* The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the bencfits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs.

» The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset (c.g., work in process) that the customer
cottltols as the asset is created or enhanced.

¢ The Group’s performance does not establish an asset thal has an aliernative usage to the Entity.
The Entity has enforceable right in payments against the completed performance to date.

Group’s revenue sireams are recognised as follows:

Services income

Revenue from services is recognized as the services are performed and completed for clients,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on defivery of the goods.

Rental inconie

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agrecments,

Dividend income
Dividend revenues arc recognised when the right to receive payment is established,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINULED)
Foreign exchange trauslation

Functional and preseniation currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD} which is also the
functional currency of the Group, ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency™).

Transactions and bolances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at the period-end and are measured at
historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary
items measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value
was determined.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency (except for companies which are operated in countries with very high

inflation rates) are translated into the presentation currency as folfows:

- Assets and liabilities for cach reporting date presented are translated at the closing rate at the
consolidated financial statements date.

- Income and expenses for each statement of income are translated at average exchange rates; and

- Al resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

Finance costs
Finance costs on borrowings and facilities are calculated on the accrual basis and are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income in the period in which they are incurred.

Finance costs directly related to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets as
part of the cost of this asset are capitalized. Capitalization of these costs commences when expenses
on the asset and finance costs arc incurred, and the activities necessary to prepare the asset are under
implementation. Capitalization shall be ceased upon the significant completion of all the activitics
necessary (o prepare the qualifying asset for its intended usc or sale.

IFinance costs that are not directly related to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assel as expense are recognized during the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

KFAS and Zakat

Contribution o Kuwail Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (“KFAS™) and Zakat represent
levies/taxcs imposed on the Parent Company at fixed percentage of profit for the year less permitted
deductions under the prevalent respective fiscal regulations of the State of Kuwait. Under prevalent
levies/taxes regulations, no carry forward of losses is pennitted and there are no significant
differences between the levies/taxes bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
purposes of the consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

KFAS and Zakat

Tux/siatutory levy Percentage

Contribution  to  Kuwait Foundation for the 1% of net profit, less permitted deductions.
Advancement of Sciences

Zakat [% of net profit, less permitted deductions.

National Labour Support Tax

‘The Group calculates National Labour Support Tax (“NLST™) in accordance with the Ministry of
Finance resolution No.19 of 2000. NLST is imposed al 2.5% of net profit atiributable to
Shareholders of the Parent Company, less the permitted deductions.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. Other fease contracts are classified as operating leases.

The Group as fessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the current value estimated for the minimum of amounts paid for fease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lcase obligation. Operaling lease payments are recogniscd as an expense in the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF THE ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

[n the application of the Group's accounting policies, the management is required to make
Jjudgements, estimales and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sourccs. The estimations and assumptions are based on the

management’s pervious experiences and other relevant factors, Actual results may vary from these
estimations.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Adjustments to
accounting estimates are recorded in the periods in which the review and adjustment of the estimates
arc made if the adjustment related to this particular period. Adjustments are recorded in the review
period and future periods if these adjustments to estimates will impact the current period and future
financial periods.

Significant accounting judgments

I the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
significant judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

26




Al Madar Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. (Public)
and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For the year ended 31 December 2020

0.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Significant accounting judgments {Continued)

Classification of financial instruments

On acquisition of a financial asset, the Group decides whether it should be classified as "at fair value
through profit or loss™, "at fair value through other comprehensive income” or “at amaortised cost”,
IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the Group’s business model for managing the assets of the instrument’s
contractual cash flow characteristics. The Group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 on classifying its
financial assets as stated in Note No. 5.

Classification of properties

The Group decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified as
“rading”, “property held for development”, “investment property” or “property, plant and
equipment”,

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary
course of business.

The Group classifies property as property under development if it is acquired with the intention of
development. The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental
income ot for capital appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

The Group classifies properties as properties, plants and equipment if they are purchased to be used
in production, services, renting for others or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than one pertod.

Useful lives of tangible assets
The Group reviews the estimated usefuf lives over which its tangible assets arc depreciated. The
Group’s management is satisfied that the estimates of useful lives are appropriate.

Key sources of estimation uncertaingy

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
consolidated financial position dale, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year consolidated financial statements
are discussed below:

Fair value measurement

Management applics valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This requires management to
develop estimates and assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that market
participants would use in pricing the financial instrument. Where such data is not observablc,
maragement uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would
be achieved in an ann’s length transaction at the consolidated financial statements datc.

Provision for expected credit losses of accounts receivable and other debit balances

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts receivable. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss palterns
(i.c., by geographical region, services type and customer). The provision matrix is initially based on
the Group’s historical observed default rates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUPGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty {Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses of accounts receivable and other debit balances (continued)
The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credil loss experience with forward-
looking information,

For instance, it forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expecled to
detertorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the investment
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlalion between historical obseived default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of expected credit losses is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECL on the Group’s accounts receivable and other
debit balances is disclosed in (Note 10},

Valuation of tnvesintent properties

The Group records investment properties at fair value where changes in the fair value are recognized
in the consolidated statement of income, three basic methods are used for determining the fair value
of the investment property:

a) Discounted cash flows method: in this method the successive amounts of expected future cash
{flows of the asset are used based on the outstanding contracts and rental conditions, and discount
the present value by using a discount rate that reflects the risks related to this asset.

b} Income capitalization: through which the property valuc is estimated based on its resulted
income. Such value is calculated based on the net operating income of the property divided by
the expected rate of return from the property as per market inputs, which is known as
capitalization rate,

¢} Comparative analysis: which base on estimations made by an independent real estate valuer by
reference to new actual deals done among other parties for similar properties in location and
condition and relying on expertise of such independent real estate valuer.

fmpairment of investments in an associate

After application of the cquity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss on the Group’s investinent in its associated companics, at each reporting date
based on existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associale is impaired. If this
is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associale and its carrying value and recognises the amount in “share of gain in
associate” in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of tangible assets

The Group reviews tangible assets on a continuous basis 1o determine whether a provision for
impairment should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In particular, considerable
judgment by management is required in the cstimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the level of provisions required.
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7. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The subsidiaries” non-controtling interests with material ratios for the Group are as follows:

Country of VYoting rights and cquity

Carrying amount of non-
controlling interests in the

Name of the subsidiary incorperation interest % subsidiary
2020 2019 2020 2019
KD KD
Dar Al-Thuraya Reat
Estate Company K.S.C.
{Public) (“Dar Al- State of
Thuraya™) Kuwail 11.09% 11.65% 1.772,538 1,796,983

Summarized financial statements of the subsidiary (“Dar Al-Thuraya™) holding non-controlling

interests in a material ratio of the Group before disposal of intra-company transactions:

Dar Al-Thuraya Real Estate Co. K.S,C. (Public)

Summarised consolidated statement of financial position:
Assets

Current assets

Non-current assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilitics

Equity attributable to the shareholders of Dar Al-Thuraya

Voting rights and equity interest of non-controlling interests in Dar
Al-Thuraya

Carrying value of non-controlling interests

2028 2019
KD KD

7,899,373 11,291,557
9,700,657 4,287,321
1,589,624 129,101
27,192 25,034
15,983,214 15,424,743
11.09% 11.65%
1,772,538 1,796,983

Summarised consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

Income

Expenses

Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of Dar Al-Thuraya
Other comprehensive income attributable to the sharecholders of Dar
Al-Thuraya

Total comprehensive income atiributable to the shareholders of Dar
Al-Thuraya

Profit / (foss) related to non-controlling interests

29
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2020 2019

KD KD
1,072,362 1,270,873
(513,891) (718,159)
558,471 552,714
- 705
557,542 556,436
929 (3,017)
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7.

9.

1.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Summarized consolidated statement of cash flows:

2020 2019
KD KD
Net cash from / (used in) operating activitics 4,520,443 {10,026,526)
Net cash (used in) / front investing activities {(4,944,554) 10,752,000
Net cash used in financing activities - (1,896,120)
Net decrease in cash and bank balances (424,111) (1,170,646)
Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year 569,542 1,993,144
Decrease in cash and bank balances from sale of subsidiaries - (252,956)
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 145,431 569,542
Total non-controfling interests of other subsidiaries is immaterial for the Group.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2029 2019
KD KD
Bank balances 639,078 4335308
Cash on hand 502 3,473
639,580 4,338,781
The annual average effective return rate on savings accounts was 0.3% as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
0.75%).
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
KD KD
Investment in quoted local shares 1,202,591 961,818
Investment in unquoted local shares 6,500 17,739
1,209,091 979,557

Valuation techniques of the investments at fair value through profit or loss are disclosed in Note 29.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES

2020 2019
KD KD
Trade receivables 1,766,601 1,783,252
Less: provision for expected credit losses (1,732,998 (I 1 149,649)
33,603 33,603
Receivables from sale of financial and real estate investments
and services 6,440,512 2,665,140
Due from sale of subsidiary - 7,000,000
Accrued rentals - 83,387
Statt reccivables 2,964 5,863
Prepaid expenscs 1,249,720 1,344,894
Due from financial institutions 403,223 492 408
Other recetvables 476,189 323,557
8,606,211 11,948,852
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

- Accrued rentals item has been presented after deducting the expected credit loss provision of KD
700,418 as at 31 December 2020 representing provisions recorded in subsidiaries (2019: KD
764.,444).

- Receivables from sale of financial and real estale investments and services item has been
presented after deducting the expected credit loss provision of KD 11,075 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: KD 54,888).

- Other receivables item has been presented after deducting the expected credit loss provision of
KD 17,001 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: KD {7,001).

The maximum exposure to credit risks at reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivables.

The Group holds guarantees of KD 33,603 for trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: KD
33,603),

Disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and analysis relating to the provision for expected
credit losses ate set forth in Note 30,

Analysis of provision for expected credit foss during the year is as follows:

2020 2019

KD KD
Balance at | January 2,585,982 3,823,812
Charged during the year 72,7750 143,748
Write back provision for expected credit losses (60,464) (563,968)
Provision written-off (a) (136,776) (385,304)
Related to disposal of subsidiaries - (432,306)

2,461,492 2,585,982

a) During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the subsidiaries’ Board of Directors approved
on 27 December 2020, to write-off the provisions relating to accrued rentals, since the legal
procedures have been completed and it has been determined that the balances are not collectible.

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise of the Group’s shareholders who are members of the Board of Directors,
key management personncl, and subsidiaries in which the Parent Company has tepresentatives in
their board. In the normal course of business, subject to approval of the Group’s management,
transactions were made with such parties during the year ended 31 December. Balances and
transactions between the Parent Company and its subsidiarics, which are related partics of the Group,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this nofe.

Due from / to a related party and related party transactions are as follows:

2020 2019

KD KD
Consolidated statement of financial position:
Due from a related party 192 316
Due to a related party 343,102 341,776
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1. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2020 2019
. KD KD
Consolidated statement of income:
Salaries and other short term benefits 163,890 216,518
End of service benefits 12,685 18,202
176,575 234,720

The amount due from / to a related party is non-interest bearing and is receivable on demand.

12, FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

EINCOME
2020 2019
KD KD
Investment in quoted local shares - 2314
{nvestment in unquoted local shares - 2,892
Investment in unquoted forcign shares 36,194 36,194
36,194 41,400

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income include unquoted foreign shares
al an actual cost of KD 3,698,839 (2019: KD 3,698,839) brought forward from 2009, Since these
investments are the subject of a legal dispute, the management decided to reduce the cost of these
investments in full in the previous years until they are finally resolved.

Valuation technigues of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
disclosed in Note 29,

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2020 2019
KD KD

Investment properties
Balance at beginning of the year 7,460,604 23,142,848
Additions 2,496,900 3,885,000
Disposals (6,381,900) (13,928,000)
Change in fair value - (41,293)
Foreign currency translation differences 2,361 {2,951)
Impact of disposal of a subsidiary - (5,595,000)
Balance at end of the year 3,577,965 7,460,604
Properties under development
Balance at beginning of the year 2,583,755 3,351,567
Additions (a) 9,301,478 -
Disposals (114,748) (602,549)
Change in fair vaiue 442,335 (163,115)
Foreign currency translation differences 1,659 (2,148)
Balance at end of the year 12,214,479 2,583,755
Balance at end of the year 15,792,444 10,044,359
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group sold investment properties at carrying amount
of KD 6,496,648 (2019: KD 14,530,549) at an amount of KD 6,446,530 (2019: KD 14,225,715)
This transaction has resulted in a loss of KD 50,118 (2019: 304,834) that was recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

(a) Additions include an amount of K> 9,257,665 representing the value of a land plot in the State of
Kuwait that is purchased by a subsidiary from a related parly during the financial year ended 31
December 2020,

As at 31 December 2020, there was an investiment property of KD 2,326,625 in the name of a related
party “Al Thekair General Trading and Contracting Company W.L.L.". The related party confirmed
that “Al Madar Real Estate Development Company K.S.C. (Closed)” {the Group’s subsidiary) is the
benelicial owner of the property based on a letter of waiver as of the consolidated financial
statements date.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2020 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by two independent valuers, one of them
is a local bank not related to the Group and the management has adopted the lower valuation. The
fair value was determined under level 2 based on the market comparable approach that reflects
recent transaction priced for similar properties (Note 29). In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their curtent use.

On 28 December 2020, the Group sold investment properties at its carrying amount of KD
0,381,900. No gain or loss has resulted as a result of this sale.

Valuation techniques of investment properties are disclosed in Note 29.
{4, INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
Details of investment in the associalc are as follows:

Yoting rights and
equity interest %%

Country of Measurement

Name of associate incorporation method Activity 2020 2019
Egyptian Saudi Company The Arab Medical
[or Medical Equipment Republic of Equity devices and
MASCOMLED (S.A.L) Lgypt mothod equipment 41.95% 41.95%
Name of associale 2020 2019

KD KD

Bgyptian Saudi Company for Medical Equipment
MASCOMED (S.ALE) 460,377 434,369
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14.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Movement on investment in an associate during the year is as follows:

2020 2019

KD KD
At t January 434,369 253,425
*Additions during the year - 87,083
Share of results of associates 59,233 59,604
Foreign currency translation differences (11,053) 47,534
Dividends (22,172) (13,277)
At 31 December 460,377 434,369

* On 25 September 2019, the Group increased its share in the associate by 11.69% through
purchase of 584,519 shares of tolal amount KD 87,083. This increase did not result in any

significant goodwill,

The summarized information relating to the associate is as follows;

Associate’s financial position:

2020 2019

Kb KD
Total assets 1,917,630 1,820,746
Total liabilities {820,187) {785,302)
Net assels 1,097,443 1,035,444
The Group’s share of associale’s net assets 41.95% 41.95%
Carrying value 460,377 434,369
Associate’s revenues and results:

2020 2019

KD KD
Income 1L714,117 2,122,264
Expenses and other charges (1,572,917 (1,952,936)
Profit 141,200 169,328
The Group’s share in associate’s results 59,233 59,604

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the associate “Egyptian Saudi Company for Medical
Equipment (S.A.E.)” distributed cash dividends at 1% of the nominal value of the share (2019:
0%} in a total amount of KD 22,172 (2019: KD 13,277} in accordance with the Associate's

General Assembly’ decision.
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I6.

17.

19,

20.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CREDIT BALANCES

2020 2019
KD KD

Trade payables 8,724 8,293
Accrucd expenses 181,340 145,524
Purchase of investinent properties payable - 45,000
Provision for employees leave 51,457 51,206
National Labour Support Tax 302,422 304,540
Zakat 122,839 124,683
Contribution to Kuwail Foundation for the
Advancement of Sciences 646 [3,456
Other payables 1,731,928 1,717,231

2,399,356 2,409,933
SHARE CAPITAL

The Parent Company’s authorized, issued, and fully paid up share capital is KD 21,386,865 (2019:
KD 21,386,865) divided into 213,868,650 shares (2019: 213,868,650), each of 100 fils. All shares
are cash shares.

STATUTORY RESERVE
As required by the Companies Law and the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the
net profit before calculation of NLST, Zakat, the contribution to KFAS and Board of Directors’
remuneration is transferred to the statutory reserve. Such transfer may be discontinued when the
reserve balance exceeds 50% of the share capital. Statutory reserve is not available for distribution
excepl as stipulated by law.

VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the net profit for the year,
before calculation of NLST, Zakat, the contribution to KFAS and Board of Directors’ remuneration,
is to be transferred to the voluntary reserve under a proposal by the board of directors and approval
of the Shareholders’ General Assembly. There is no transfer to the reserve during the year as per the
Board of Directors decision on 19 February 2020 issued to discontinue the transfer.

TREASURY SHARES

_ 2020 2019
Number of shares purchased (No’s) 6,845,096 6,845,096
Ownership percentage (treasury shares petcentage to
total issued shares) 3.2% 3.2%
Cosl (KD} 4,573,296 4,573,290
Market value (KD} 622,903 610,583

The Parent Company is committed to keeping reserves and capital share premium equal to the
purchased treasury shares cost which are non-distributable along acquisition period by the Parent
Company in accordance with instructions of the concerned regulatory authorities.
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21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2020 2019

KD KD
Staff costs 487,370 752,613
Depreciation and amortization 2,200 1,700
Other 399,243 731,570
888,813 1,485,889

22,  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit for the year attributable to
the Parent Company’s shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the year.

Net profit for the year from the continuing and discontinued
operations attributable {o the Sharchoiders of the Parent
Company (KD)

Profit for the year from the coutinuing operations
attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent Company
(KD)

Profit for the year from the discontinued operations
attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent Company
(KD)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Number of issued shares (share)

Less: Weighted average number of treasury shares (shares)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year from the
continued and discontinued operations attributable to the
shareholders of the Parent Company (fils)

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year from the
continuing operations attributable to the sharcholders of the
Parent Company ({ils)

Basic and diluted earnings per share {or the year from the
discontinued operations attributable to the Shareholders of the
Parent Company (fils)

37

2020 2019
7,352 1,386,287
7,352 793,928
- 592,359
213,868,650 213,868,650
(6,845,096) (6,845,096)
207,023,554 207,023,554
0.04 6.70
0.04 3.83
, 2.86
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23. REVENUE
31 December 2620

Real Financial
| esfates assets Other Total
KD KD KD KD
; Operating income {Note 25) - - 165,451 165,451
N Investment services revenucs - 1,234 - 1,234
Total revenues from contracts with
i customers - 1,234 165,451 166,685
Rental income (Note 24) 439,688 - - 439,688
Other income 442 335 534,334 91,783 1,068,452
; Total income 882,023 535,568 257,234 1,674,325
Geographical markets
State of Kuwait - 1,234 165,451 166,685
Total revenues from contracts with
custoners - 1,234 165,451 166,685
Timing of revenue recognition
Services rendered at a point in time - 1,234 165,451 166,685
Total revenues from contracts with
customers - 1,234 165,451 166,085
31 Pecember 2019
Real Financial
estates assets Other Total
KD KD KD KD
Operating income {Note 25) - - 420,600 420,600
Investment services revenues - 36,070 - 36,070
Total revenues from contracts with
customers - 36,070 420,600 456,670
Rental income (Note 24) 864,847 - - 864,847
Other income - 79,892 4,162,090 4,241,982
Total income 864,847 115,962 4,582,690 5,563,499
Geographical markets
State of Kuwail - 36,070 420,600 _ 456,670
Total revenues from confracts with
customers - 36,070 420,600 456,670
Timing of revenue recognifion
Services rendered at a point in time - 36,070 420,600 450,670
Total revenues from contracts with
customers - 36,070 _{@O,GOO 456,670
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24.

25,

26.

27,

NET RENTAL INCOME

2020 2019
KD KD
Rental income (Note 23) 439,688 864,847
Rental costs (93,132) (233,050)
346,556 631,797
NET OPERATING LOSS
2020 2019
KD KD
Operating income (Note 23) 165,451 420,600
Operating costs (386,828) (560,435)
(221,377 (139,835)

FIDUCIARY ASSETS

Fiduciary assets comprise of investments and funds managed on behalf of clients. These assets are not
owned by the Parent Company, and accordingly they are wot included in the consolidated financial
statements. At the consolidated financial statements date, the total fiduciary assets managed on behalf
of clients amounted to KD 4,027,000 (2019: KD 4,444,000) of which a portfolio managed on behalf of
a related party of KD 696,040 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: KD 1,254,324).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified based on the internal reports of Group segments which are regularly
reviewed by the Chaictnan and general manager as the principal decisions makers in the Group so as to
allocate resources to and evaluate performance of these segments on an ongoing basis.

The operating segments that meet the conditions and criteria for reporting them in the consolidated
financial statements and are used in the internal reports regularly submitted lo decision makers are as
{ollows:

a) Real estate:
This sector represents investing in investment propertics to generate rental income, for capital
appreciation, or for trading purposes.

b) Financiaf assets:
This sector represents investment in short term money market instruments, investment in shares of
listed and unlisted companics whose articles of association and activities are in compliance with
rules of the noble Islamic Shari a.

¢) Corporate finance:
Activity of this segment is to provide finance to companies by using the different Islamic financing
instruments, i.e. Murabaha, Wakala, future sales and other contracts that arc in compliance with
rules of the noble Islamic Shari’a.

o). Other:
This includes the revenues and expenses that are not included under the above sectors.
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27. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Summarized information in respect of the Group’s segment information is given below:

Segment revenues Segment profi(
2020 2019 2020 2019
KD KD KD KD
Real estates 882,023 864,847 738,773 355,604
Financial assets 535,568 115,962 424,814 (5,282)
Corporate finance - - - 2,173,615
| Other 257,234 4,582,690 (129,594) 863,558
L 1,674,825 5,563,499 1,033,993 3,387,495
General and administrative expenses (888,813) (1,732,395)
IR Provision for expected credit losses (72,750) (143,748)
Impairment of financial assets at faur
value through profit or loss - (41,147)
National Labour Support Tax - (13,188)
Zalat {278) (6,868)
KEFAS {046) (13,456)
Net profit for the year 71,506 1,436,693

The assets and liabilities of the different operating segments are analysed as follows:

Segment asscts 2020 2019
KD KD
Real estates 22,232,956 15,045,359
Financial assets 1,705,662 8,455,326
Corporate finance 192 316
Other 2,831,190 4,314,744
Total scgment assets 26,770,000 27,815,745
Segment liabilities 2020 2019
KD KD
Corporate finance 343,162 341,776
Other 2,791,212 2,777,152
Total segment liabilities 3.134,374 3,118,928

28. SHAREHOLDERS GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Board of directors proposed in its meeting held on 22 February 2021 not to distribute dividends to
the Sharcholders for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: KD
£,035,118) and not to pay remuneration to the board members for the same year. This proposal is
subject to approval of the Shareholders” annual General Assembly.

The annual General Assembly meeting of Shareholders held on 5 April 2020 appraved the annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and
approved distribution of dividends to the Sharcholders of KD 1,035,118 for the year ended 31
December 2019 and distribution of board of directors’ remuneration of KD 25,000 for the linancial
year ended 31 December 2019.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In the opinion of the
Group’s management, the carrying values of the financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December are
not significantly different from their carrying value.

Categories of financial instruments
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group have been classified in the consolidated statement of
financial position as follows:

Carried at

Carried at amortised
fair value cost Total
KD KD KD
2020
Financial assets;
Cash and bank balances - 639,580 639,580
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,209,091 - 1,209,091
Accounts receivable and other debit balances
(excluding expenses paid in advance) - 7,356,491 7,356,491
Due from a related party - 192 192
Financial assets at fair valuc through other
comprehensive income 36,194 - 36,194
1,245,285 7,996,263 9,241,548
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and other credit balances - 2,399,356 2,399,350
Due to a related party - 343,162 343,162
- 2,742,518 2,742,518
Carried at
Carried at amortised
fair value cost Total
KD KD KD
2019
Financial assets:
Cash and bank balances - 4,338,781 4,338,781
Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss 979,557 - 979,557
Accounts receivable and other debit balances
{excluding expenses paid in advance) - 10,603,958 10,603,958
Due from a related party - 316 3t6
Financial assets al fair value through other
contprehensive income 41,400 41,400

1,020,957 14,943,055 15,964,012

Financial liabilities:

Accounls payable and other credit balances - 2,409,933 2,409,933
Due to a related party - 341,776 341,776
- 2,751,709 2,751,709
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29,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial and non-financial assets measured at fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that arc measured subsequent to

initial recognition at fair value, Grouped into Levels | to 3 based on the degree to which the fair

value is observable:

- Leve!l I: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurcment date.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly (inputs relating to prices).

- Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 1,202,591 - 6,500 1,209,091

Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income - - 36,194 36,194

Non-financial asscts

Investment properties - 15,792,444 - 15,792,444
1,202,591 15,792,444 42,694 17,037,729

2019 Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

KD KD KD KD

Financial assets:

IMinancial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 961,818 - 17,739 979,557

Financial assets at lair vatue through

other comprchensive income 2,314 - 39,086 41,400

Non-financial assets

Investment properties - 10,044,359 - 10,044,359

964,132 10,044,359 56,825 11,065,316

There have been no transfers between levels during the year,

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the consolidated financiaf position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices arc readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specilic estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Apart [rom the above, the financial instruments will be deemed to be included within Level 3, due
to the absence of observable inputs.

All other financial assets and financial liabilitics carried at amortised cost approximate their fair
values at the consolidated financial position date.

The valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to
the previous consolidated financial statements period.
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30.

FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks: ¢.g. market risk (i.c. foreign currency
risk, profit rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Pareni Company’s
management policies for reducing each of the risks are discussed below. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments based on future speculations.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurcment and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised,
in respect of cach class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Market risk

Market risk comprises of foreign currency risk, profit rate risk and equity price risk. Such risk arises
from change in market prices, and change in the profit and exchange rates.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign cuttency risk arises from Group’s exposure to {luctuations of foreign currency arising from
various cutrency cxposures. Foreign currency risk arises when future cominercial transactions or
recognised assets and labilities and net investments in foreign operations. The following is the
value of net positions of foreign currencies as at the consolidated financial statements date;

2020 2019

KD KD
equivalent equivalent
US Dollar 101,883 164,883
Omani Rivals 1,979,373 2,396,027
UAE Dirham 3,793,598 3,763,333
Egyptian Pound 460,377 470,563
6,335,231 6,731,806

The table below includes analysis of effect on the consolidated statement of income (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) as a result of change in currency rate, with all
other variables held constant as follows:
Effect of increase in currency
exchange rate by 5% on the
consolidated statement of income

2020 2019
KD KD
equivalent equivalent
US Dollar 5,094 5,094
Omani Riyals 98,969 119,801
UAE Dirham 189,680 188,167
Egyptian Pound 23,019 23,528

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market profit rates. Profit rate risk arises from the long term loans.
Loans with variable profit rates may expose the Group to cash flows risk because of the profit rates.

The Group dose not have significant assets or liabilities with variable profit rate; accordingly, the
Group’s profit, cash and operational flows are not significantly affected by changes in the market
profit rate.
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30.

b}

FENANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINULD)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk feontinued)

Equity price risk
Equity price risks are the risks that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in the fevel of equity indices or the value of individual share prices. Equity price risk arises

* from the change in fair values of equity investments,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the changes in fair value to reasonably possible
changes in equity prices, with all other variables held constant. The effect of decteases in equity
prices is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown. The Group is not
significantly exposed ta equity price risk.

The effect on cquity as a result of a change in the fair value of assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income due to the possible changes in stock exchange markets index (5% +), with
all other variables held constant, is as follows:

Eifect on equity

2020 2019
KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,810 2,070

Credit risk

This represents the inability of one party to the financial instrument to meet its liabilities on maturity
date, resulting into financial losses to the other party. Financial assets which primarily subject the
Group to credit risk consist principally of bank balances, accounts receivable and other debit
balances, due from a related party. The credit risk related to receivables and other debit balances is
limited due to the varicty of customets and distribution of credit on a large number of customers.
For more details, see Note (10). Balance of receivables is presented net of provision for expected
credit losses. The bank balances are placed with high credit rating financial institutions.

Trade receivables and other debit balances

The Group applies the [FRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses for all
trade receivables and other debit balances as these items do not have a significant financing
component, In measuring the ECLs, trade receivables and other debit balances have been assessed
on a collective basis respectively and classified based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

The expected losses rates are based on the ageing customers over 3 years before 31 December 2020
and | January 2020 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses during that period.
The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking macroeconomic factors
affecting the customers’ ability to settle the amount outstanding. However given the short period
exposed to credit risk, the impact of these macroeconomic faclors has not been considered
significant within the period of consolidated financial statements.
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30.

b)

FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINULD)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (continned)

Set out befow is the expected credit losses for trade receivables was deferminied as follows:

The Group has calculated what equals 100% as expected credit loss for all receivables relating to
financing operations in accordance with CBK’s instructions.

More than
31 December 2020 365 days Total
KD
iCLs rate (%a) - 100%
ECLs (KD) 1,732,998 1,732,998
More than
31 December 2019 365 days Total
KD
ECLs rate (%) ] 100%
ECLs (KD) 1,749,649 1,749,649
Expected credit losses of accrued rentals that were determined as stated below:
31 December Less than 91-18¢ 181 — 365 More than
2620 90 days days days 305 days ~_ Total
KD
ECLs rate (%) 74% 81% 94% 100%
ECLs (KD) 7,623 4,953 2,909 684,933 700,418
31 December L.css than 91-180 181 —365 More than
2019 90 days days days 365 days Total
KD
ECLs rate (%) 74% 8i% 94% 100%
ECLs (KD) 5557 5,095 7,276 746,516 764,444
Expected credit losses of other receivables that were determined are stated as below:
31 December Less than 91-180 181 — 3065 More than
2020 90 days days days 365 days Total
KD
ECLs rate (%) 8% 25% 40% 100%
ECLs (KD) 783 1,607 3,926 10,685 17,001
31 December Less than 91-180 181 - 365 More than
2019 90 duays days days 365 duys Total
KD
ECLs rate (%) 8% 25% 40% 100%
ECLs (KD) 783 1,607 3,926 10,685 17,001
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30.

b)

FENANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The ECLs rates are the weighted average of those rates calculated between the Group’s companies
based on the aging of customers over 3 years prior to that date.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognized) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Failure to make payments within 365 days from the invoice date and failure to make an
alternative payment arrangement - amongst other - with the Group is considered an indicator of no
reasonable expectation of recovery and therefore is considered as credit impaired.

Bank balances

The Group’s banks balances measured at amortized cost are considered to have a low credit risk and
the loss allowance is based on the 12 months expected loss. The Group's banks balances are placed
with high credit rating financial institutions with no previous history of default. Based on
management’s assessiment, the ECLs impact is insignificant to the Group as the risk of default has
not increased significantly since initial recognition,

The maximum limit of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default of the counterparty is
the bank balances, accounts receivable and other debit balances and due from a related party.

The Group considers that the most significant exposure to credit risk is as follows:

2028 2019
KD KD
Bank balances 039,078 4,335,308
Accounts receivable and other debit balances (excluding prepaid
expenses) 7,356,491 10,603,958
Due from a related party 192 316
7,995,761 14,939,582

Geographic concentration of maxinuam expositre (0 credit risk
The maximum exposure lo credit risk for financial assets at the consolidated financial statements
date by geographical region and industry wise sector is as follows:

Gult
Cooperation
Council
Countrics Total
KD KD

31 December 2020:

Bank balances 639,078 639,078
Accounts receivable and other debit balances (excluding prepaid

expenses) 7,356,491 974,591
Pue from a related party 192 192

7,995,761 1,613,861
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30. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

b) Credit risk (continued)

Gulf
Cooperation
Council
Countries Total
KD KD
31 December 2619:
Bank balances 4,335,308 4,335,308
Accounis receivable and other debit balances (excluding prepaid
expenses) 10,603,958 10,603,958
Due {rom a related party 316 316
14,939,582 14,939,582
2020 2019
KD KD
E : Sector:
. Real Estate and Commercial 7,356,683 10,604,274
S Banks and financial institutions 639,078 4,335,308
7,995,761 14,939,582

c) Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group becomes unable to settle its liabilitics when due.
Liquidity risk management includes holding sufficient cash and making finance sources available
through sufficient facilities, holding high liquidity assets, monitoring liquidity regularly through
future cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on the remaining
period at the consolidated statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December, the carrying amounts of the Group’s liabilities with maturity less than 12
months are not materially different from their contractual undiscounted value.

31 December 2020:

On 3to 12
demand months Total
KD KD Ki2
Accounts payable and other credit balfances - 2,399,356 2,399,356
Due to a related party 343,162 - 343,162
343,162 2,399,356 2,742,518
31 December 2019;
On Jto12
demand months Total
KD KD KD
Accounts payable and other credit balances - 2,409,933 2,409,933
Due to a related party 341,776 - 341,776
341,776 2,409,933 2,751,709
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FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are:

+ To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern to be able to provide retuns to
sharcholders and benefits to other beneficiaries.

e To maintain optimal returns to the shareholders by pricing products and services
comnensutately with risk fevel.

The Group's sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust, return capital to Shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES .
2020 2019

KD KD
Letters of guarantee - 60,600

THE ECONOMIC SITUATION DUE TO CORONAVIRUS

Due to the current significant events arising from the spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19) that has
affected the global cconomic situation and exposed the Group to various risks, including a decrease
in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, decrease in the rental
amounts and increase in the expected credit losses for clients.

The above stated impacts on the consolidated financial statements during the financial year ended 31

December 2020 are as follows:

- Decrease in the fair value of the financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss amounting to
KD 110,754,

- The Group’s Board of Directors approved to make 4 provision for expected credit losses at an
amount of KD 72,750 against the due rental amounts, [t further approved to write-off the due
reral amounts and the provision for expected credit losses which was previously made for them at
an amount of KD 136,770,

- The management approved to grant discounts at different percentages on the reptal amounts for
some tenants whose business has been affected by the current events effective from April 2020
until June 2020. Accordingly, the total amounts of the same reached KD 39,592.

The Group’s management considers that the time period for this cvent is not specified and it is
difficult to anticipate any future results that might arise therefrom including any decrease in the
future rental amount or decline in the market value of the investment property. Therefore, the
financial impact cannot be reasonably determined on the Group's future business resufts until the
datc of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figurcs have been reclassilied to conform to the current year presentations. Such

reclassification did not affect the previously disclosed consolidated statement of income,
consolidated equity or opening balances of the earfiest comparative period presented.
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